
  

 

James Ellis  

Head of Head of Legal and Democratic 

Services  
 

 
This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper 

 
 

 

 

 

MEETING : LOCAL JOINT PANEL 

VENUE : COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD 

DATE : TUESDAY 2 NOVEMBER, 2021 

TIME : 2.00 PM 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PANEL 

 

EMPLOYER’S SIDE: 

 

Councillors J Dumont, E Buckmaster, L Haysey, and A Ward-Booth 

(Chairman) 

 

Substitutes: 

G Cutting and I Kemp 

 

STAFF SIDE - UNISON 

 

J Bruce (Vice-Chairman), Forde, J Francis and Mr P Stevens 

 

Substitutes:  Munro  

 

(Note:  Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member 

to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting) 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Democratic Services 

01279 502172 

Lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Lorraine.blackburn@eastherts.gov.uk


 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

 

1. A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, sub-

committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Authority, with a 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to be considered or being 

considered at a meeting: 

 

 must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting; 

 

 must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting; 

 

 must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or not, 

subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act 2011; 

 

 if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 

notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 

28 days; 

 

 must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place. 

 

2. A DPI is an interest of a Member or their partner (which means spouse or 

civil partner, a person with whom they are living as husband or wife, or a 

person with whom they are living as if they were civil partners) within the 

descriptions as defined in the Localism Act 2011. 

 

3. The Authority may grant a Member dispensation, but only in limited 

circumstances, to enable him/her to participate and vote on a matter in 

which they have a DPI. 

 

4. It is a criminal offence to: 

 

 fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not 

on the register; 

 fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, within 28 days, of a DPI that is not 

on the register that a Member disclosed to a meeting; 

 participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a Member 

has a DPI; 

 knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or misleading 

in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in disclosing such 

interest to a meeting. 

 

(Note: The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine 

not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and disqualification 

from being a councillor for up to 5 years.)  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings 

 

 

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees 

using whatever, non-disruptive, methods you think are suitable, which may 

include social media of any kind, such as tweeting, blogging or Facebook.  

However, oral reporting or commentary is prohibited.  If you have any questions 

about this please contact Democratic Services (members of the press should 

contact the Press Office).  Please note that the Chairman of the meeting has the 

discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons, including disruption 

caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.  Anyone 

filming a meeting should focus only on those actively participating and be 

sensitive to the rights of minors, vulnerable adults and those members of the 

public who have not consented to being filmed.   
 

Public Attendance 

 

East Herts Council welcomes public attendance at its meetings and will provide a 

reasonable number of agendas for viewing at the meeting.  Please note that 

there is seating for 27 members of the public and space for a further 30 standing 

in the Council Chamber on a “first come first served” basis.  When the Council 

anticipates a large attendance, an additional 30 members of the public can be 

accommodated in Room 27 (standing room only), again on a “first come, first 

served” basis, to view the meeting via webcast.   

 

If you think a meeting you plan to attend could be very busy, you can check if the 

extra space will be available by emailing democraticservices@eastherts.gov.uk or 

calling the Council on 01279 655261 and asking to speak to Democratic Services. 

  

 

mailto:democraticservices@eastherts.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies  

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 

 

2. Minutes (Pages 7 - 14) 

 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 May 2021 

 

3. Chairman's Announcements  

 

4. Declarations of Interest  

 

 To receive any Members’ Declarations of Interest. 

 

5. Reports by Secretary to the Employer's Side  

 

(A) Domestic Abuse Policy (Pages 15 - 32) 

 

6. Reports by Secretary to the Staff Side  

 

 There are no reports from the Secretary to the Staff Side 

 

7. Urgent Business  

 

 To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of 

the meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration and is not 

likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information. 

 

 



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

  MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

LOCAL JOINT PANEL HELD AS AN ONLINE 

MEETING ON WEDNESDAY 5 MAY 2021, AT 

12.00 PM 

   

 PRESENT: Employer’s Side 

 

  Councillors J Dumont, E Buckmaster,  

L Haysey and A Ward-Booth 

 

Staff Side (UNISON) 

 

J Bruce, S Forde and P Stevens 

   

 ALSO PRESENT:  

 

  Councillor R Bolton 

   

 OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 

 

  Peter Mannings - Democratic 

Services Officer 

  Simon O'Hear - Head of Human 

Resources and 

Organisational 

Development 

  William Troop - Democratic 

Services Officer 

 

1   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN FOR 

2021/22  

 

 

 It was moved by Councillor Haysey and seconded by 

Councillor Dumont, that Councillor Ward-Booth be 

appointed Chairman and Jackie Bruce be appointed 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

Vice-Chairman for 2021/22. After being put to the 

meeting and a vote taken, the motion was declared 

CARRIED. 

 

RESOLVED – Councillor Ward-Booth be 

appointed Chairman and Jackie Bruce be 

appointed Vice-Chairman for 2021/22. 

 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

 

 An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of 

Nicola Munro. It was noted that Paul Stevens was 

acting as a substitute for Nicola Munro, but would be a 

permanent Panel Member going forward. It was noted 

that Julie Pomfrett had resigned from her role as Panel 

Member. 

 

 

3   MINUTES - 20 JANUARY 2021 

 

 

 It was moved by Councillor Dumont and seconded by 

Councillor Ward-Booth, that the Minutes of the 

meeting of the Committee held on 20 January 2021 be 

confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 

Chairman. After being put to the meeting and a vote 

taken, this motion was declared CARRIED. 

 

RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the Committee 

meeting held on 20 January 2021 be confirmed 

as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 

 

4   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

 

 There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

 

 

 

Page 6



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

5   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 

 Councillor Buckmaster declared a non-pecuniary 

interest in that he had a family member who was an 

apprentice at the Council. 

 

 

6   REPORTS BY SECRETARY TO THE EMPLOYER'S SIDE 

 

 

 The Head of Human Resources and Organisational 

Development (HR and OD) briefly introduced the 

report and explained that four policies had been 

redeveloped, the Appeals Policy had been reduced, 

and the addition of minor clauses to three other 

policies was proposed. 

 

In relation to the Capability Policy, the Head of HR and 

OD explained that the name of this policy had 

changed, in line with best practice. The policy had been 

made more concise and adaptable, as well as the use 

of ‘stages’ being introduced in place of ‘warnings’. The 

framework of stages had been made clearer and 

generally improved. UNISON welcomed the changes. 

 

The Vice-Chairman said that the addition of a flowchart 

to the policy had been discussed with the Head of HR 

and OD, as recommended by UNISON and East Herts 

Together, to provide a visual aid. The Head of HR and 

OD confirmed that this would be added. 

 

Councillor Dumont asked whether a probationary 

period would be applicable if a staff member 

voluntarily redeployed to a new role.  

 

The Head of HR and OD said that the staff member 

would remain on the same stage, but their targets 

 

Page 7



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

would be related to their new role. Voluntary 

redeployment would be considered subject to 

business need, and provided a useful alternative to 

dismissal. 

 

Councillor Buckmaster asked why the use of ‘Director’ 

had been removed from the policy in favour of 

‘member of Leadership Team’. He also asked, in view 

of the removal of three year reviews, whether new 

legislation would automatically be added to policies, or 

whether the Panel would need to review the changes 

on each occasion.  

 

The Head of HR and OD said that the removal of 

references to Directors was to bring the policy in line 

with updated corporate language, as Heads of Service 

had replaced Directors. He also said that minor 

changes may be agreed between HR and UNISON, but 

significant changes would be considered by the Panel.  

 

Councillor Haysey thanked Officers for their work on 

the policy and welcomed the addition of a flowchart. 

 

It was moved by the Chairman and seconded by the 

Vice-Chairman that the recommendation, as detailed, 

be approved. After being put to the meeting and a vote 

taken, the motion was declared CARRIED. 

 

RESOLVED – that (A) the revised Capability 

Policy be approved. 

 

In relation to the Flexible Working Request Scheme, 

the Head of HR and OD said that this had been 

strengthened and an appeals procedure added. All 

flexible working requests would be given fair 

Page 8



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

consideration. 

 

It was moved by Councillor Ward-Booth and seconded 

by Councillor Haysey that the recommendation, as 

detailed, be approved. After being put to the meeting 

and a vote taken, the motion was declared CARRIED. 

 

RESOLVED – that (B) the revised Flexible 

Working Request Scheme be approved. 

 

In relation to the Recruitment and Induction Policy, the 

Head of HR and OD said that there had been a 

significant redevelopment. The policy now 

incorporated safer recruitment, was strengthened on 

equality, and allowed sensible flexibility within 

recruitment, such as the use of internal recruitment 

where beneficial. Temporary roles of fewer than six 

months could be recruited for from a pool of casual 

workers. If the role then became permanent, with the 

temporary employee performing satisfactorily and 

having been in the role for over three months, they 

would be guaranteed a ring-fenced interview.  

 

Members were also advised that the policy had been 

updated to reflect the matrix supply chain framework 

and encourage the use of diverse recruitment panels 

where possible, or a ‘meet the team’ approach where 

this could not be achieved. There was also ongoing 

work on the production of case studies regarding 

diversity. Secondment guidance had also changed and 

secondments were now less likely to be approved 

given the challenges posed by the low rate of staff 

returning to the Council following their secondment.  

 

Councillor Dumont asked whether checks were carried 

Page 9



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

out on agency staff. The Head of HR and OD said that, 

when required, Disclosure and Barring (DBS) checks 

could be verified. There were also automatic controls 

which prevented agencies putting forward candidates 

without the required documentation. 

 

Councillor Haysey asked about the induction of staff 

during the COVID-19 pandemic period.  

 

The Head of HR and OD and the Vice-Chairman said 

that corporate inductions had continued virtually and 

had been successful, with new starters feeling 

supported and acknowledged. They thanked Helen 

Farrell, HR Officer, for her work on the inductions. 

 

It was moved by the Councillor Ward-Booth and 

seconded by Councillor Haysey that the 

recommendation, as detailed, be approved. After being 

put to the meeting and a vote taken, the motion was 

declared CARRIED. 

 

RESOLVED – that (C) the revised Recruitment 

and Induction Policy be approved. 

 

In relation to the Organisational Development Policy, 

the Head of HR and OD said a new funding 

programme for professional development had been 

introduced which allowed more flexibility on the level 

of funding provided by the Council. This would be a 

better system and was linked to Performance and 

Development Reviews (PDRs). HR would now manage 

training requests centrally, which would allow a fairer 

distribution of funds between services. UNISON had 

asked the Council to consider funding all professional 

memberships, but the Council did not have the 

Page 10



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

available budget for this.  

 

Councillor Buckmaster said that the policy used the 

word ‘consider’ extensively and asked how responses 

to training requests would be kept consistent.  

 

The Head of HR and OD said professional training 

requests would be considered by members of 

Leadership Team (LT), with support from HR, so 

consistency would be achieved in this way. 

 

It was moved by the Councillor Ward-Booth and 

seconded by Councillor Buckmaster that the 

recommendation, as detailed, be approved. After being 

put to the meeting and a vote taken, the motion was 

declared CARRIED. 

 

RESOLVED – that (D) the revised Organisational 

Development Policy be approved. 

 

It was moved by the Councillor Ward-Booth and 

seconded by Councillor Haysey that the 

recommendation, as detailed, be approved. After being 

put to the meeting and a vote taken, the motion was 

declared CARRIED. 

 

RESOLVED – that (E) the revised and reduced 

Appeals Policy be approved in line with the 

changes made to the policies (A) and (B) above. 

 

It was moved by the Councillor Ward-Booth and 

seconded by Councillor Dumont that the 

recommendation, as detailed, be approved. After being 

put to the meeting and a vote taken, the motion was 

declared CARRIED. 

Page 11



LJP  LJP 
 
 

 
 

 

RESOLVED – that (F) additional clauses 

regarding management of Leadership Team 

members and ensuring the Chief Executive is 

available for appeals relating to the three 

policies, be approved. 

 

Councillor Haysey said that as this was to be the last 

meeting held virtually, she wanted to give her personal 

thanks to the Vice-Chairman and the Head of HR and 

OD, and their respective colleagues, for their hard 

work and flexibility throughout the COVID-19 

pandemic period. 

 

7   REPORTS BY SECRETARY TO THE STAFF SIDE 

 

 

 There were no reports by the Secretary to the Staff 

Side. 

 

 

8   URGENT BUSINESS 

 

 

 There was no urgent business. 

 

 

The meeting closed at 12.34 pm 

 

 

Chairman ............................................................ 

 

Date  ............................................................ 

 

 

Page 12



 

  

  

Local Joint Panel  

Date of Meeting:  2 November 2021  

Report by: Head of Human Resources & Organisational 

Development 

Report title: Domestic Abuse Policy  
 

Ward(s) affected:  None 

       

Summary 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   

(a)That the Panel endorses the East Herts Domestic Abuse 

Policy for approval by the Human Resources Committee. 

 

1.0 Proposal(s) 

1.1 The proposals are set out in the recommendations 

above.  

 

2.0 Background    

2.1 The draft East Herts Domestic Abuse Policy was written 

following on from recommendations made by the 

Hertfordshire Safeguarding Board at the 2019 

Hertfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board (HSAB) self-

assessment day.   

2.2 The policy outlines the council’s commitment to 

responding sensitively and effectively to those 

employees needing help and support should they 

experience domestic abuse, promoting the view that 

violence against people is unacceptable and will not be 

condoned. 

2.3 The policy is underpinned by a commitment to the 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5a



 

  

principles of safeguarding children and vulnerable 

adults, a duty of care to the council’s employees and 

equality and diversity  

2.4 The policy aims to positively assist and support 

employees experiencing or surviving domestic abuse 

and assist managers in supporting staff where incidents 

of domestic abuse are reported. 

2.5 Providing appropriate support to staff experiencing, or 

surviving, domestic abuse can reduce absences from 

work, assist in improving performance and help staff to 

feel valued and supported. 

 

3.0 Report 

3.1 Following on from feedback form the HSAB self-

assessment day in 2019, the action to develop a 

Domestic Abuse Policy was added to the East Herts 

Council Safeguarding Action Plan. 

3.2 The policy has been written by the Service Manager – 

Community Wellbeing & Partnerships, one of East Herts’ 

safeguarding leads, in consultation with the East Herts 

Safeguarding Policy Group.  

3.3 The Safeguarding Policy Group brings together the Head 

of Housing & Health as East Herts Safeguarding Lead, 

with the Head of HR & Organisational Development and 

the Executive Member for Neighbourhoods, who has 

responsibility for safeguarding, and, among other 

things, monitors the Safeguarding Action Plan on a 

quarterly basis. 

3.4 The policy outlines East Herts Council’s stance on 

domestic abuse, making it clear that verbal or physical 

by any council employee, on or off duty, is 

unacceptable. 

3.5 The policy provides advice and guidance for staff with 

regards to how to handle cases of domestic abuse 

Page 14



 

  

sensitively and respectfully, supporting staff and keep 

them safe while ensuring the necessary information is 

recorded and actions taken.  

3.6 UNISON has been consulted on the draft Domestic 

Abuse Policy and are supportive. 

 

4.0 Implications/Consultations 

 

Community Safety 

The Policy has an important role to play in community safety issues 

as they relate to council employees. 

Data Protection 

Any information shared by a member of staff will be subject to the 

council’s standard data protection policies. 

Equalities 

A separate equalities analysis has not been conducted as it is felt the 

overall equalities analysis of HR policies pertains to this proposed 

one. 

Environmental Sustainability 

There are no environmental sustainability implications arising from 

this report. 

Financial 

There are no financial implications arising from this report.  

Health and Safety 

The policy outlines arrangements that can be implemented to ensure 

the health and safety of staff surviving, or experiencing, domestic 

abuse. 

Human Resources 

The policy provides guidance and advice for staff on how to manage 

Page 15



 

  

domestic abuse concerns, how to support staff. This includes advice 

on support for staff from both EHC and line managers. 

Human Rights 

There are no human rights implications arising from this report.  

Legal 

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.  

Specific Wards 

No 

 

5.0 Background papers, appendices and other relevant 

material 

5.1 The updated Domestic Abuse Policy is attached at 

Appendix 1.  

 

Contact Officer   

Simon O’Hear, Head of HR and OD 

simon.o’hear@eastherts.gov.uk 

Report Author 

Nick Phipps, Service Manager – Community 

Wellbeing & Partnerships 

nick.phipps@eastherts.gov.uk  

Page 16

mailto:Simon.OHear@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:nick.phipps@eastherts.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 
 

East Herts Council 

 

Domestic Abuse Policy and Procedure 
 
 

 

 

Policy Owner: Safeguarding Group 
 
Date of last review: November 2021 
 
Date of next review: November 2024

Page 17



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 
 
 

Contents 

1. Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Policy statement ................................................................................................................................................. 3 

3. Definitions of Domestic Abuse ....................................................................................................................... 4 

4. The impact of domestic abuse on the workplace ........................................................................................ 5 

6. Individual support ............................................................................................................................................. 5 

7. Managers and Supervisors .............................................................................................................................. 6 

8. Recording Information ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

9.  Dealing with Perpetrators of Domestic Abuse ............................................................................................. 9 

10. Monitoring and policy review ................................................................................................................... 10 

11. Key contact details ...................................................................................................................................... 10 

 
 

 

  

Page 18



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 East Herts Council is committed to responding sensitively and effectively to 

those employees needing help and support should they experience 

domestic abuse, promoting the view that violence against people is 

unacceptable and will not be condoned. 

 

1.2 This policy is underpinned by a commitment to the principles of 

safeguarding children and vulnerable adults, a duty of care to the Council’s 

employees, and equality and diversity. All those experiencing or affected by 

domestic abuse will be treated according to their needs. 

 

2. Policy statement 
 

2.1 East Herts Council work with Survivors Against Domestic Abuse (SADA) to 

provide support to those affected by domestic abuse and to reduce the 

incidents of domestic abuse in East Herts.  
 
 
2.2 The Council is committed to ensuring support is available to employees who 

are experiencing or surviving domestic abuse and recognises that anyone 

can experience or be a survivor of domestic abuse regardless of their 

gender identity or sexual orientation.  
 
2.3 The Council recognises the scope of domestic abuse and that it has a 

responsibility for the wellbeing of staff; understanding that domestic 

abuse can have a major impact on individuals, who may hide the 

circumstances of their situation from others including their children, 

colleagues and family members. 
 
2.4 This policy is inclusive of all people affected by domestic abuse, 

irrespective of their age, race or ethnicity, religion, disability, sex or sexual 

orientation. 

 

2.5 This policy aims to: 

 

 positively assist and support employees who are experiencing or 

surviving domestic abuse; 

 assist managers in supporting staff when incidents of domestic 

abuse are reported; 

 

Page 19



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 reduce absences from work resulting from domestic abuse; and 

assist in improving performance by positively offering practical 

support to employees who are affected; 

 remove fears of stigmatisation at work of members of staff 

experiencing domestic abuse; 

 demonstrate the Council’s commitment to challenging the social 

issue of domestic abuse. 

 

2.6 Guidance will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Head of Housing and 

Health and the Service Manager – Community Wellbeing and Partnerships. 
 

3. Definitions of Domestic Abuse 
 

4.1 For the purpose of this policy, the cross-government definition of domestic 

abuse has been adopted. This is:  

 

Any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening 

behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 16 or over who are, or have 

been, intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or sexuality. 

The abuse can encompass, but is not limited to, psychological, physical, 

sexual, financial and emotional abuse. 

 

4.2 This definition, which is not a legal definition, includes so called ‘honour’ 

based violence, female genital mutilation (FGM) and forced marriage, as well 

as teenage to parent abuse and elder abuse when committed within the 

family or by an immediate partner. It is clear that victims are not confined to 

one gender or ethnic group.  

 

4.3 Domestic abuse involves misuse of power and exercise of control by one 

adult over another adult; usually within the context of an intimate 

relationship or within a family. It is rarely a one-off incident. Evidence 

suggests it is a pattern of abuse and intimidation that becomes more severe 

over time.  

 

4.4 Domestic abuse occurs in all groups and sections of society and may be 

experienced differently, due to race, sexuality, gender re-assignment, 

disability, age, religion, culture, class, mental health or caring responsibilities.  

 

4.5  Examples of domestic abuse:  

 

Page 20



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 Physical assault or threats of physical assault  

 Sexual assault or threats of sexual assault;  

 Emotional or psychological abuse  

 Denial of rights or restriction of personal freedom  

 The imposition of social isolation or movement deprivation;  

 Forced marriage.  

 
 

4. The impact of domestic abuse on the workplace 
 
5.1 Employees experiencing domestic abuse may be harassed, stalked, or 

even physically assaulted while at, or travelling to and from, work.  
 

5.2 Perpetrators may be using workplace resources such as time, 

phones, e-mail or other means to threaten, harass or abuse their 

current or former partner. 
 
 
5.3 The impact of domestic abuse can greatly impact on an employee’s 

working life, contributing to lateness, absenteeism and poor 

performance. 
 
5.4 Employees experiencing domestic abuse are especially vulnerable while 

they are at work because once they attempt to leave an abusive partner 

the workplace can become the only place where they can be located and 

harmed. 

  

6. Individual support 
 

6.1 All employees have the right to work in a supportive and confidential 

environment that does not discriminate against or stigmatise them if they 

are experiencing domestic abuse.  

 

6.2 As an employee you are not obliged to tell anyone at work about your 

domestic situation but there are a whole range of people within the Council 

that you may find it helpful to talk to, for example; your line manager or HR 

staff. You may also wish to access support through SADA or the employee 

assistance programme (EAP). 

 

Page 21



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

6.3 Where disclosures are made, staff will respond sympathetically, 

confidentially and will respect the right of the individual to make their 

own decision on the course of action at every stage 

 

6.4 Where domestic abuse has been reported, line managers will treat 

unplanned absences and temporary poor time-keeping sympathetically. 

 

7. Managers and Supervisors 

7.1 Managers may be the first person to Managers may be the first to become 

aware that an employee is experiencing domestic abuse because they have 

the role of monitoring and investigating sickness, attendance and work 

performance. Some additional indicators to consider are: 

 

 uncharacteristically late or high absenteeism rate without explanation; 

 inappropriate or excessive clothing; 

 repeated injuries or unexplained bruising or explanations that do not fit 

with the injuries; 

 changes in the quality of work performance for no apparent reason; 

 receiving repeated upsetting calls / texts / emails or being victim of 

vandalism / threats; 

 member of staff becoming withdrawn or showing changes in personality; 

 lack of money; 

 obsession with time or avoiding lunch breaks or socializing outside of 

work; 

 needing time off for appointments 

 

The effects of domestic abuse will vary and the examples given are only 

potential indicators and should not be used alone to identify whether or 

not someone is a victim of domestic abuse. 

 

7.2 Managers who become concerned that a member of staff may be 

experiencing domestic abuse should: 

 

 be supportive, available and approachable; 

 take time to listen 

 take the employee seriously 

 use empathy and ensure a non-judgmental approach; 

 ask any direct questions with care and sensitivity, reinforcing that, as far 

as possible, confidentiality will be respected; 

Page 22



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 hold discussions in a private place; 

 encourage the employee to seek the advice of other relevant agencies; 

 signpost staff to support available through the EAP and SADA; 

 agree a communication plan with the individual when time off is needed; 

 not act as a counsellor - this should be left to trained professionals; 

 seek advice from the HR team where unsure 

 

More details guidance for managers is shown in Appendix 1. 

 

7.3 Confidentiality 

 

7.3.1 The council will only involve other agencies; or divulge information with the 

consent of the person concerned; unless required to do so by law or where 

there is an immediate risk to the safety of an individual. 

 

7.3.2 Managers have a duty to maintain a secure environment for all employees. 

This may be made easier if colleagues are aware of potential risks. In 

situations where others may be put at risk, and at the express wish of the 

member of staff in question, managers can agree with the individual what 

information can be disclosed. Colleagues privy to this information must be 

reminded that the information is confidential and that there are risks to the 

member of staff if it is disclosed. 

 

7.3.3 Staff should be reminded of the importance of not divulging an individual’s 

personal details; such as addresses, telephone numbers and shift patterns; to 

other employees or unknown people requesting the information. 

 

7.4 Providing Support 

 

7.4.1 Managers should treat distracted behaviour, poor time-keeping and 

unplanned absences sympathetically where there is the suggestion that it 

may be the result of domestic abuse. 

 

7.4.2 Line managers may offer employees experiencing domestic abuse a broad 

range of support. This may include but is not limited to: 

 

 leave for relevant appointments, including with support agencies, 

solicitors, to rearrange housing or childcare, and for court appointments; 

 temporary or permanent changes to working times and patterns;  

 changes to specific duties, for example to avoid potential contact with an 

abuser in a customer facing role or if they are a fellow employee;  

Page 23



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 redeployment or relocation deemed appropriate and reasonable;  

 getting places on assertiveness training courses;  

 using other existing policies including Work Life Balance options.  

 access to occupational health interventions, e.g. counselling 

 

7.5 Keeping employees safe 

 

7.5.1 The Council will actively provide support to employees to try and minimise 

the risk to their safety while at work, if they make it known to us that they are 

experiencing or surviving domestic abuse. 

 

7.5.2 Managers will take reasonable measures to ensure both the member of staff 

and others immediate safety and security at work, considerations include: 

 
 improving security, changing keypad numbers or reminding staff of any 

restricted access arrangements which may apply; 

 changing duty arrangements such as reception or answering the phone;  

 changing the layout of the room so that the individual cannot be seen 

through reception/entrances or through a window;  

 changing specific duties to avoid potential contact with an abuser; 

 agreeing with the person experiencing domestic abuse what to tell 

colleagues and how they should respond to contact from the abuser; 

 providing colleagues with a photograph and other relevant details; 

 ensuring systems for recording staff whereabouts are adequate and risk 

assessments are carried out for lone working or work out of the office;  

 considering arrangements for when a member of staff has to leave work;  

 ensuring incidents are recorded using incident report forms. Details of all 

witnesses should be recorded;  

 seeking redeployment for staff if they request a change of location; 

 considering a change of working hours or other temporary measures; 

 avoiding requests to work overtime without reasonable notice;  

 establishing how to contact the member of staff outside of work; 

contacting them at home may not be appropriate.  

 

7.5.3 Risk assessments and management control measures should include all 

foreseeable risks. A risk of domestic abuse in the workplace is reasonably 

foreseeable once an employee has raised the issue with the line manager. 

 

7.5.4 Where the perpetrator and victim both work for the Council, reasonable steps 

will be taken to stop any abuse and to ensure the victim and their colleagues 

are not at risk from the perpetrator entering the work place. 
Page 24



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 

7.6 Absence 

 

7.6.1 Absence from work due to domestic abuse will be considered on an 

individual basis in collaboration with the employee, line manager and HR. 

 

7.6.2 Employee, managers and supervisors are encouraged to explore paid leave 

options that can be arranged to help the employee cope with the situation 

without having to take a formal unpaid leave of absence. Depending on 

circumstances these options may include: 

 

 granting leave or arranging temporary flexible working hours so the 

employee can attend relevant appointments with support agencies; 

 

 adjustments to the sickness triggers under the Absence Management Policy.  

 

None of the above excludes employees from adhering wherever possible to 

the Council’s absence reporting procedure or Attendance Policy. 

 

8.   Recording Information 

 

8.1 In agreement with the staff member, Managers will record a summary of discussions 

and agreed outcomes. This will be kept confidential, removed once the incident has 

been resolved and will not form part of routine management/personnel record. 
 

9.  Dealing with Perpetrators of Domestic Abuse 
 

9.1 Verbal or physical abuse by Council employees on or off duty are 

unacceptable. They can impact on the Council’s employment 

relationship and damage the reputation of the Council. 
 
9.2 The Council will ensure that there is no collusion with the behaviour of 

employees who are perpetrator. Disciplinary action may be taken against 

staff who are abusive to Council employees or on Council property or time. 

 

9.3 Employees will be made aware that conduct outside of work may breach the 

Council’s Code of Conduct and bring the Council into disrepute. This could 

result in the initiation of the disciplinary procedure. 

 

Page 25



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

9.4 Employees who are perpetrators may wish to seek help and support. Those 

seeking help will be offered assistance in finding local sources of help, such 

as perpetrator re-education programmes available locally/regionally. 

 

9.5 If a member of staff is convicted of domestic abuse offence which conflicts 

with their role at the Council, appropriate action should be taken and advice 

sought from HR. Factors to consider include: 

 

 the nature of the conduct and the role of the perpetrator at work;  

 the extent to which it involves contact with employees/service users.  

10. Monitoring and policy review 

10.1 This policy will be reviewed every three years or sooner if there are any 

changes in legislation or best practice requiring amendments to be made 

 

11. Key contact details 
 
Simon O’Hear, Head of HR & Organisational Development  

Direct Dial:   01279 502141 

Mobile: 07850 299728 
 
Email: simon.o’hear@eastherts.gov.uk  
 

 

East Herts Council Lead Officer for Safeguarding 

Jonathan Geall, Head of Housing and Health  

Direct Dial:   01992 531594 

Mobile: 07921 941239 
 
Email: jonathan.geall@eastherts.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 
Page 26

mailto:jonathan.geall@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:jonathan.geall@eastherts.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX 1 

 

East Herts Council deputy Lead Officer for Safeguarding 
 
Nick Phipps, Service Manager – Community Wellbeing and 

Partnerships 
 
Direct Dial:   01992 531547 

 
Mobile: 07834 150517 

 
Email: nick.phipps@eastherts.gov.uk 

 

safeguarding@eastherts.gov.uk 

  

Page 27

mailto:nick.phipps@eastherts.gov.uk
mailto:safeguarding@eastherts.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX 1 

 

APPENDIX 1  

 

Good Practice Guidelines - Supporting someone experiencing Domestic Abuse  

If a member of staff comes to you and is alleging domestic abuse they should be 

believed unless there is clear evidence to the contrary.  

 

You should  

 

 Find a safe place to talk  

 Check if they are happy to talk to you or would prefer to speak to someone 

else; 

 Listen carefully and provide space to talk. Assure them of your confidentiality 

unless there are child protection issues which must be reported.  

 Be sensitive and discuss their fears.  

 Accept that what is being said is the truth.  

 Keep your personal opinions to yourself, do not be judgmental.  

 Remember their options may be limited by a lack of access to resources.  

 Ask the member of staff what they want you to do, if anything, and respect 

their decision.  

 Ask the member of staff if they want to report it to the police and/or need to 

see a GP/Occupational Health for medical attention – again this is their 

choice. If the person is injured they should be encouraged to do this and have 

any injuries assessed and documented with their consent  

 Give information - not advice.  

 Be prepared to offer the same standard of support on all occasions no matter 

how many times the same member of staff comes forward. Because of the 

persistent nature of domestic abuse victims often find it very difficult to leave 

abusive relationships.  

 Assist them in making contact with agencies that may be able to help  

 

You Should Not  

 

 Expect too much – they may not want you to do anything other than listen.  

 Mislead the individual into thinking you can do more than you can realistically 

do as their manager.  

 Give a new address or phone number to anyone, including payroll or put 

their new details on any documents other people may have access to.  

 Set pre-conditions for supporting them; rush them to make a decision to 

force them to take action.  

 Act as a go-between.  

 

Page 28



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

Remember  

Offering basic information about services is helpful whether they are used 

immediately or not. Victims need a link to the larger community, and may be 

unaware that they need or deserve these services as they probably minimize the 

abuse.  

Pressuring the victim to leave the abuser is not helpful. Violence usually escalates 

after an attempt to leave. Leaving the situation is a step that should be carefully 

planned after support and must be taken at the victim’s pace.  
 

Admitting the abuse is happening is the first step to stopping it. 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5a Domestic Abuse Policy
	Draft East Herts Council Domestic Abuse Policy - Appendix


